
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel to 
be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 5 June 2019

TIME: 9.30 am (Member Only Briefing)
10.00 am (Meeting)

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Welcome and Introductions. 

2  Apologies for absence. 

3  Declarations of Interest. 

4  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 3 April 2019. 

(Pages 1 - 8)

5  Matters arising. 

6  Report of the Dental Health in Salford Task and Finish Group (Pages 9 - 22)

7  Work Programme Development (Pages 23 - 32)

8  Quality Account Responses (Pages 33 - 36)

9  Any other business. 

10  Date and time of next meeting - Wednesday 3 July 2019 at 
10.00am 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3011
Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: mike.mchugh@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL

3 April 2019

Meeting commenced: 10.00 a.m.
“                  ended: 11.51 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Sammie Bellamy - in the Chair

Councillors Barbara Bentham, Tanya Burch, Jim Dawson, Jim King, 
Sophia Linden and Arnold Saunders

Councillor Gina Reynolds, Lead Member for Adult Services, Health and 
Wellbeing and Councillors Jane Hamilton, Executive Support Member 
Social Care and Mental Health attended at the invitation of the Chair

CO-OPTED MEMBERS:

Bruce Poole Salford CVS
J Ahmed Healthwatch Salford
David backhouse Healthwatch Salford

INVITEES: Cath Gormally Director of Social Care in Salford Integrated 
Care Organisation (ICO)

Mark Knight Greater Manchester Combined Authority
Nicky Herne Public Health Finance Contract & Business 

Support Manager

OFFICERS: Mike McHugh Senior Democratic Services Advisor 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Margaret Morris, 
Wilson Nkurunziza, Peter Taylor and John Warmisham.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no formal declarations of interest. 

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 2019 were approved as a correct 
record.

4. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

3 April 2019

2 | P a g e

5. DRAFT GREATER MANCHESTER DRUG AND ALCOHOL STRATEGY

Mark Knight gave a presentation which provided details of the Greater Manchester 
Drug and Alcohol Strategy (2019 – 2021), including details as follows -

(i) OUR STARTING POINT IN GREATER MANCHESTER

 Alcohol-specific mortality rates 50% higher than for England 
 70% rise in drug related deaths over last 10 years

 27% of residents report a local issue with people using or dealing drugs

 Incapacity Benefit claims where alcohol misuse is the main disabling 
condition are 75% higher than national average

 Hospital admissions for alcohol specific conditions 53% higher than for 
England

 1 in 5 fire injuries / fatalities involve someone suspected to be under the 
influence of drugs

 17% of ‘violence against the person’ crimes and 12% of sexual offences 
flagged as alcohol related

(ii) DEVELOPING A GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY

 2014 - 2017 GM Alcohol Strategy Historically, 10 drug strategies at locality 
level No single overarching Drug & Alcohol Strategy setting out our 
collective GM ambition

 Strong commitment from locality substance misuse commissioners / 
Directors of Public Health

 Co-designing with local partners, elected members, voluntary and 
community sector and experts by experience since late August 2017

 Draft Strategy endorsed at a GM level by: 

Health and Justice Board (11.06.18), 
Justice and Rehabilitation Executive Board (18.06.18) 
Reform Board (03.08.18) 
Police and Crime Steering Group (20.09.18) 
HSCP Executive Board (20.02.19). 
Strong support from Public Consultation (Dec 2018 – Jan 2019)

Page 2



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

3 April 2019

3 | P a g e

(iii) DRUGS AND ALCOHOL ARE THE BUSINESS OF EVERYBODY

- Greater Manchester Strategy
- Taking Charge
- Greater Manchester Population Health Plan
- GM Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy
- GM Sexual Health & Reproductive Strategy
- “Standing Together” – Police and Crime Plan
- Greater Manchester Primary Care Strategy
- Early Intervention & Prevention Strategy
- Greater Manchester Children’s Health & Wellbeing Strategy
- Greater Manchester Early Years Strategy

(iv) OUR VISION

“To make Greater Manchester a place where everyone can have the best start 
in life, live well and age well, safe from the harms caused by drugs and 
alcohol”

 A place where everyone can have the best start in life, live well and age 
well, safe from the harms caused by drugs and alcohol

 A place where people who drink alcohol choose to do so responsibly and 
safely

 A place were our services and communities work together to build 
resilience and address the harms caused by drugs and alcohol

 A place where children, young people and families have the best start in 
life and future generations grow up protected from the impact of drug and 
alcohol misuse.

 A place where people are empowered to avoid using drugs and alcohol to 
cope with adversity and the stresses and strains of life

 A place where individuals who develop drug and alcohol problems can 
recover and live fulfilling lives in strong resilient communities

(v) THE DRAFT STRATEGY – OUR 6 PRIORITIES

Drugs and alcohol are everybody’s business and we will work together with 
our communities and partners around the following key priorities - 

 Prevention and early intervention
 Reducing drug and alcohol related harm
 Building recovery in communities
 Reducing drug and alcohol related crime and disorder
 Managing availability and accessibility
 Establishing diverse, vibrant and safe night time economies

Page 3



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

3 April 2019

4 | P a g e

(vi) WE WILL

 Encourage individuals, communities, public services, the voluntary and 
community sector and private business to all play their part in addressing 
the challenges we face.

 Harness the wealth of assets that exist within our local communities.
 Focus on targeting and intervening at the earliest possible opportunity
 Develop a set of principles and common standards that will help inform the 

way services are delivered consistently, effectively and efficiently across 
Greater Manchester.

 Work towards ensuring that our drugs and alcohol services better 
integrate, both with each other and with other provision such as mental 
health, criminal justice, skills and work and other place based services.

(vii) PUBLIC CONSULTATION RESULTS 

- There were a total of 452 responses including 77 on behalf of 
organisations. 

- The vast majority thought we had the right vision (92%) and agreed that 
we were working with the right themes (91%). 

- Some concerns about resources to deliver the strategy - underlining the 
need for public sector reform that the strategy emphasises. 

- Requirement to consider the specific needs of communities of interest
- Welcome emphasis on: 

• prevention, early intervention and supporting families 
• reducing the stigma associated with drug and alcohol use
• harnessing the assets of those with lived experience to promote 

recovery

(viii) DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY AND VISION

- Priorities underpinned by series of commitments
- Strategy designed as a framework for localities and wider partners
- Identify spatial levels for actions – Greater Manchester, clusters of 

areas, localities and neighbourhoods
- Draft implementation plan sets out year 1 priorities.

The Implementation Plan that sits beneath the strategy is fully resourced with 
no adverse financial implications for locality partners or providers.

(ix) SPATIAL LEVELS

Greater Manchester Clusters Locality 

Tier 4 Framework Treatment Services Treatment Services
 

Drugs Early Warning Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Building Recovery
System Disorder pilot Communities 

Page 4



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

3 April 2019

5 | P a g e

Big Alcohol Conversation Community Sentence Integration with place
Treatment Requirement based working
pilot 

Common service Integration of hospital Closer working between
standards and offers and community based drug and alcohol
e.g. liaison and services services and children’s 
diversion services

Monitoring and Links between 
Understanding Drug treatment services and
Related Deaths key support services

(x) FINAL STEPS 

The final part of the governance pathway was: 

• GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee – 13th March 2019 (Agreed). 
• GM Corporate Issues and Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee – 

19th March 2019 (Agreed) 
• GM Combined Authority - 29th March 2019 (Approved)

Councillor Sammie Bellamy, on behalf of the Panel, placed on record her thanks to 
Mark Knight for his hard work and dedication in the production of the Greater 
Manchester Drug and Alcohol Strategy.

RESOLVED: THAT the report and presentation be noted.

6. THE ROLE OF THE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL CARE IN SALFORD INTEGRATED 
CARE ORGANISATION

Cath Gormally gave a presentation which provided details of her new role within the 
Salford Integrated Care Organisation, which included details, as follows -

(i) Background and context 

• ICO was established in 2016 and is at the vanguard of integrated care: 

- Transfer of adult social care staff � 
- Located in integrated neighbourhood teams � 
- Delegation of adult social care statutory duties and 

responsibilities to the NHS

Page 5



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

3 April 2019

6 | P a g e

(ii) Key responsibilities of the DOSC 

(a) Professional social work and social care leadership: � 

- Professional standards � 
- Professional social work practice � 
- Strong voice of social work and social care within the integrated 

organisation

(b) Statutory duties under the Care Act: � 

- Prevention, early intervention, promote well-being, assessments, 
services, safeguarding adults

- ‘Market management’ � 
- Accountable to the Strategic Director, People (Director of Adult Social 

Services) in the council

(c) Strategic leadership:

- Core member of the Salford Directors’ team � 
- Influencing culture and developing partnerships and integrated working

(iii) Priorities for 2019/20

- Further developing integration and new models of care in the 
neighbourhood teams � 

- Developing strengths, asset-based approaches and models in 
social work and integrated practice

Councillor Sammie Bellamy, on behalf of the Panel, placed on record her thanks to 
Cath Gormally for informative presentation.

RESOLVED: THAT the presentation be noted.

7. DRAFT SALFORD ROYAL FOUNDATION TRUST (SRFT) QUALITY ACCOUNT 
2018 / 2019

Consideration was given to the draft Salford Royal Foundation Trust Quality Account 
for 2018 / 2019.

Members were requested to provide any comments in respect of the document to 
Mike McHugh for inclusion in a formal response to be made by Councillor Margaret 
Morris in her role as Chair of the Panel.

RESOLVED: THAT the matter be noted; and that a copy of the formal response be 
provided to members upon submission.

Page 6



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

3 April 2019

7 | P a g e

 

8. WORK PROGRAMME 2019 / 2020

Further discussion took place in respect of the issues to be included on the Work 
Programme for the 2019 / 2020 municipal year.

RESOLVED: THAT the draft work programme be confirmed.

9. NORTHERN CARE ALLIANCE - THE LOOP SPRING 2019

Issue 4, Spring 2019 of the Loop, the magazine for the Northern Care Alliance NHS 
Group was provided for the information of members.

RESOLVED: THAT the matter be noted.

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There were no items of any other business.

11. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED: THAT the next meeting of this Panel be held on Wednesday 5 June 
2019, in a Committee Room at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, 
commencing at 10.00 a.m.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the 
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

Dental Health in Salford

A Review of
Dental Health in Salford

May 2019

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



2 | P a g e

Table of Contents Page

1. Foreword by the Chair - Councillor Margaret Morris, MBE 3

2. Objectives of the Review 4

3. Background and Methodology 4

4. Evidence 4

5. Conclusion and recommendations 11

6. Acknowledgements 11

7. Evidence Documentation 11

8. Appendix 13

Page 10



3 | P a g e

1. Foreword by the Chair 
 

1.1. On behalf of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel, I am pleased to 
present the report of Dental Health in Salford Sub Group. 

1.2. The report brings together the conclusions and recommendations of the 
group, based on evidence presented at a number of meetings held between 
October 2018 and March 2019.

1.3. We would like to thank those who took part in those discussions, Gillian 
Maclauchlan, Gunjit Bandesha and Beverley Wasp from Salford’s Public 
Health Service Group.

1.4. We hope that the conclusions and recommendations highlight the concerns of 
members regarding the problems associated with dental decay among the 
children of the city. 

1.5. The Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel present this report to the Lead 
Member for Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing.

Councillor Margaret Morris, MBE 
Chair of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

Page 11



4 | P a g e

2. Objectives of the Review

2.1. The aim of this review was to examine the effectiveness of the current dental 
services in Salford. The main focus of the review was to examine the dental 
health of children. 

3. Background and Methodology

3.1. At the meeting of the Health and Adults Scrutiny Panel held on 3 October 
2018, members considered a report, ‘A Review of Oral Health in Salford 2018
Age 0-19 years’, which had been prepared by the Director of Public Health.

3.2. At the end of the discussion the Panel agreed to establish a Task and Finish 
Group to examine the issue in further detail.

3.3. The Task and Finish Group was to comprise all members of the Health and 
Adults Scrutiny Panel.

3.4. It was confirmed that Gillian Maclauchlan, Gunjit Bandesha and Beverley 
Wasp from Salford’s Public Health Service Group.would provide expert 
support to the Task and Finish Group.

3.5. It was confirmed that Public Health England had responsibility for the 
commissioning of NHS Dental contracts and efforts were made by the Task 
and Finish Group to engage with their officers. 

4. Evidence

4.1. During the course of the review members of the Task and Finish Group were 
provided with evidence relating to a number of areas.

4.2. The latest (2016/17) survey of oral health amongst five year olds found that 
44.6% of those surveyed in Salford had some evidence of tooth decay. Given 
the sample size of the survey, the true figure for decay amongst five year olds 
across Salford is likely to be between 38.2% and 58.1% (this is the 95% 
confidence interval). Even when taking this into account, Salford still has a 
significantly higher rate that seen nationally, 23.3% (95% CI: 23.0% to 
23.6%).

4.3. The previous survey (2014/15) saw a rate of decay in Salford of 51.0% with 
children having an average 2 teeth with decay. Whilst the current rate is 
lower, evidence cannot be completely relied upon because of the overlap in 
the confidence intervals between the two surveys.

4.4. Figure 1 shows the percentage of 5 year olds with tooth decay over the last 3 
surveys. 

Page 12



5 | P a g e

Figure 1

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 w

ith
 d

ec
ay

Proportion of five year old children with dental decay 
Source: Public Health England

Salford England

4.5. Figure 2 shows the percentage of 5 year olds with tooth decay by 
neighbourhood form the 2014/15 survey 

Figure 2

4.6. Figure 3 shows the average number of decayed, missing and filled teeth 
caused by tooth decay (DMFT - decayed, missing, and filled teeth) over the 
last 3 dental surveys in the areas of Greater Manchester with the worst rates 
of dental decay.

Page 13



6 | P a g e

Figure 3

4.7. The first and only oral health survey of three year olds was carried out in 
England in the school year 2012/13.  This survey reports information on the 
prevalence and severity of dental decay in three year old children attending 
nurseries, both private and state funded.

4.8. In England 12% of three year old children had experience of obvious dental 
decay having one or more teeth that were decayed, extracted or filled due to 
decay, with The North West being the second worst region for three year olds 
with decay experience.  

4.9. Shown in Figure 4, Salford had the 3rd worst rate out of the 10 Local 
Authorities in Greater Manchester with 25% of 3 year olds in Salford 
experiencing dental decay.

Page 14



7 | P a g e

Figure 4

4.10. The survey highlights that decay process starts early and reflects the impact 
of other programmes designed to improve parenting, child weaning, feeding 
and living conditions.  The state of young children’s teeth is a useful indicator 
of the impact of interventions. It can provide an indication of improvements or 
deterioration of health in the population of pre-school children

4.11. Teeth extraction – 2015-16 

In 2015/16 359 children aged 0 - 19 years were admitted to hospital for 
removal of teeth under general anaesthetic in Salford, 66 of those being age 
0-4 years. The estimated cost is £1,000 per episode of care.  The waiting list 
can be up to 12 months for hospital admissions for extractions.  It is not only 
the extraction of the teeth that impacts on the child and family but also the 
management of pain prior to the extraction. 

4.12. Research about extracts in children in North West hospitals found that 26% 
had missed days from school because of dental pain and infection. There was 
also an impact on the potential days of work lost as 41% of parents/carers 
were employed. There are also long-term implications of having a general 
anaesthetic in childhood.

4.13. Early Childhood Caries (Bottle Caries).

Early childhood caries (ECC) typically affects smooth surfaces of upper front 
teeth and can affect many other teeth as well.  This is associated with long-
term use of a baby bottle containing sugared drinks, especially if given at 
night.  This long-term use usually results from putting a baby or toddler to bed 
with a bottle of sugary drinks and allowing them to drink freely from a bottle 
during the day.  If water or milk is given in this way there is no harm to teeth. 

Page 15



8 | P a g e

4.14. Early childhood caries (bottle caries) is widespread, in the neighbourhoods of 
Little Hulton & Walkden, Eccles, East Salford, Claremont & Weaste and 
Ordsall & Langworthy (based on demographic mapping from Public Health 
England).  These areas have higher levels of deprivation and evidence 
highlights an association with children living in areas of deprivation who are 
more likely to experience dental decay and more likely to be underweight on 
the nation child measurement programme in reception.

4.15. Projections of tooth decay  

To develop effective prevention strategies for Salford and improve oral health 
it is important to understand how decay develops and progresses over time. 
Evidence suggests that children who developed caries in their primary teeth 
have a very different caries trajectory in their permanent teeth compared to 
their caries-free contemporaries.

4.16. Interventions in Salford to improve oral health

In Salford, we have developed and are developing primary and secondary 
prevention interventions to improve oral health. Evidence suggests that 
having a range of interventions at different levels has the most impact, 
therefore, Salford is working towards this through the following themes:

4.17. Reducing sugar  

The Start Well partnership between Salford City Council, Salford Clinical 
Commissioning group and Salford Community Leisure are tackling sugar and 
have created a programme of work for #SugarSmartSalford.  

To date the partnership has introduced a number of projects to reduce sugar 
consumption for children which include:

(a) GULP with St Patrick RC High School. Year 8 pupils took on the giving 
up sugar drinks challenge in February and replaced these with water. 
During the challenge the science teachers adapted the lessons to 
teach the young people about the harms of excess sugar.  The Public 
Health team are completing the evaluation to consider further roll out to 
other high schools.

(b) Sugar smart Brownies – the partnership has developed a sugar smart 
Brownie challenge and badge which was developed with the support of 
the 1st Boothstown group.  This will be offered to all Salford Brownie 
groups to complete.  Public Health England will be completing a case 
study on this project as an example of good practice and conversations 
have begun with the national guiding who will look at rolling it out 
nationally.

Page 16



9 | P a g e

(c) Sugar smart vending – Salford Community Leisure and Salford City 
Council removed all the sugary drinks from their facilities and only sell 
the sugar-free version.  Salford is the first area to take this approach 
and has received praise nationally for good practice.

4.18. Oral Health Prevention  

(a) Health Visitor and School Nurses have oral health prevention written 
into their contact; the table in Appendix 1 outlines the programmes 
currently being delivered in Salford. Health visitors have rolled out out 
the transformation programme, providing  fluoride toothpaste, brushes 
and information leaflet to parents at 9 month and 2 year checks.

(b) The Health Improvement Team deliver a fluoride tooth-brushing 
scheme to nurseries in schools, private nurseries and children in 
reception class. Children are brushing at lunchtime to increase fluoride 
application. The Oral health transformation programme aims to 
increase uptake so all Salford nurseries and reception classes are 
taking part.

4.19. Prevention through General Dental Practices 

(a) Baby Teeth Do Matter - Via the Transformation programme. 

(b) Healthy Living Dental Practice will be re-launched by the GM 
Partnership and the Local Dental Network. The aim of the programme 
is to improve the health and wellbeing of the local population and help 
to reduce health inequalities through the provision of inclusive, holistic 
high quality care in general practice across GM.  One of the key 
objectives of the programme is for dental practices to work from 
Standards of better oral health to improve oral health prevention 
delivery. 

(c) Prevention of dental disease is implicit within the dental contract. 
Dentists are advised to follow national guidance “delivering better oral 
health”. Prototypes of new models of the primary dental care contract 
are being developed and tested. These models include emphasis on 
prevention and on quality.

4.20. Greater Manchester Transformation Bid 

Nationally, thirteen LA areas have been highlighted as ‘priority areas’ by NHS 
England due to the persistently high levels of dental decay at 5 years old and 
four of these areas are within GM (Bolton, Rochdale, Salford and Oldham).

Page 17



10 | P a g e

4.21. Oral health has also been highlighted as a strategic objective in the GM 
Population Health Strategy. This presents an opportunity for the 
transformation programme to support programmes at a community/population 
and practice level to establish a universal approach, delivering evidence-
based oral health improvement programmes across GM, including health, 
social and primary dental care settings, as well as additional interventions in 
priority areas.

4.22. The proposed programme will be delivered via the community setting and 
primary dental care:-

(a) Delivery of fluoride toothpaste / mouth care packs, key standardised 
preventive messages and promotion of ‘dental checks by one’ via 
health visitors or linked community nurses.  Current provision of this 
evidence-based intervention will be aligned to ensure that all children in 
GM receive two interventions: before the first birthday (including 
promotion of a dental check by age one) and between the first and 
second birthday.

(b) Providers of early years education will provided with guidance for the 
establishment of supervised fluoride toothpaste tooth brushing 
programmes. The aim is to increase uptake from these providers.

(c) Baby Teeth Do Matter - Plus : The original programme will be reviewed 
and relaunched to ensure that all primary dental care teams across 
Greater Manchester have a standardised approach to the delivery of 
appropriate dental health advice and prevention for young children. 
This will be achieved through a CPD programme targeting all practices. 
The programme content is based on ‘Delivering Better oral health – 
evidence based toolkit for the dental team’ and will include specific 
guidance for the prevention and management of young children – 
particularly those under one year. Additional capacity in the primary 
dental care system will ensure adequate access in Years 1 and 2 with 
the aim that by Year 3 this can be tailed off as repeat visits for children 
with treatment needs reduce.

4.23. The oral health transformation programme enables us to invest heavily into 
oral health prevention aimed primarily at our 0 to 5 years olds, looking at 
changing habits and supporting the reduction of dental disease in our 
population. By increasing fluoride application along with brushing will support 
the reduction of dental decay.  This will be accompanied by literature to 
educate families on the cause of tooth decay. Providing this information early 
is important to prevent bad habits becoming embedded into life styles.  

4.24. The GM Transformation programme has appointed Salford a full-time staff 
member funded by NHS England to work across our City supporting the 
reduction of tooth decay in 0 to 5 year olds by supporting the delivery of the 
programmes outlined above.

Page 18



11 | P a g e

5. Conclusion and recommendations

5.1. Members noted with concern that Salford has high levels of dental decay and 
that action is required to address the issues.  

5.2. Members noted that as a nation we need to do more about the amount of 
sugar we consume and improve our diet to protect our health. 

5.3. Members concluded that fluoride reduces tooth decay and can be provided in 
various forms not just via water fluoridation. 

5.4. Members confirmed that ensuring all our children 0 to 5 are brushing with a 
fluoride toothpaste, increasing application, using the correct dose of fluoride 
toothpaste and arming families with the correct diet advice can reduce the 
rates of tooth decay.  

5.5. Members concluded that the reduction of tooth decay has to be a whole 
health economy approach and the transformation programme will support 
Salford with this approach.  

6. Acknowledgements

Members  would like to place on record their thanks and appreciation to 
Gillian Maclauchlan, Gunjit Bandesha and especially to Beverley Wasp for 
their assistance in providing the evidence upon which this report is based 

7. Evidence Documentation

9.1 Public Health England (2016) Information for Greater Manchester arising from 
a dental survey of five years olds 2014.

9.2. Public Health England (2014) Water fluoridation Health monitoring report for 
England 2014

9.3. WHO (2015), Sugars intake for adults and children: Guideline, World Health 
Organization 
http://www.who.int/nutrition/publications/guidelines/sugars_intake/en/ 

Free sugars are sugars added to foods by the manufacturer, cook or 
consumer, and sugars naturally present in honey, syrups, fruit juices and fruit 
juice concentrates. Sugars that naturally occur in fruit and vegetables are not 
free sugars, they are instead ‘intrinsic sugars’

9.4. Press Release 4 January 2016 
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/5-year-olds-eat-and-drink-their-body-
weight-in-sugar-every-year  (accessed 20/12/2016) 

Page 19

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/5-year-olds-eat-and-drink-their-body-


12 | P a g e

9.5. Public Health England (2016) Improving oral health: a community water 
fluoridation toolkit for local authorities

9.6. http://www.cochrane.org/CD010856/ORAL_water-fluoridation-prevent-tooth-
decay

9.7. Report of the Director of Public Health March 2018 ‘A Review of Oral Health 
in Salford 2018 - Age 0-19 years’

Page 20

http://www.cochrane.org/CD010856/ORAL_water-fluoridation-prevent-tooth-%09decay
http://www.cochrane.org/CD010856/ORAL_water-fluoridation-prevent-tooth-%09decay
http://www.cochrane.org/CD010856/ORAL_water-fluoridation-prevent-tooth-%09decay


Appendix 1

Oral Health Delivery Plan for 0-5 Children Service/ Health Visitors/ School Nurses and Health Improvement 

‘Tiny Teeth Do Matter’

Target Audience  Delivered by Work Programme Resource

0-5 Years Public Health To be used by Health Visitors, School Nurses, Childrens 
Centres and HIS. To support the delivery of key oral 
health messages at appropriate intervals.

Development of the Top Tips for 
Tiny Teeth Programme. 
-booklet and delivery plan

0-5 Years Health Visitors Key oral health prevention messaged.

28 week pregnancy check
2 week check
6 to 8 week check
4 to 3 month check
2 year check

Top Tips for Tiny Teeth 
Programme booklet and delivery 
plan used.

0-5 years Start Life well at the 
Childrens centre.

Childrens Team 
and HIS, SCC.

Key oral health prevention.

-Baby Feeding and advice support group
-Stay and play sessions
-Breast feeding group
-Song and rhyme time 

Top Tips for Tiny Teeth 
Programme booklet and delivery 
plan used.

0-19 years Housing & CVS Key oral health messages PHE information and fact sheet

P
age 21



14 | P a g e

Primary and Secondary 
School Children

Schools Key messages –

 Understand how to maintain a balanced diet to 
lead a healthier lifestyle as they grow up

 Adopt an independent and proactive approach to 
healthier eating by making healthier snack choices

 Swap to lower sugar and lower fat foods based on 
their increased awareness of the impact of fat build-
up in the human body

Change for Life - Sugar Swap

Children in Nurseries 
and Reception class in 
Salford

HIS & 
Transformation 
Programme

Brushing daily with fluoride toothpaste at school. Brushing pack currently provided 
by HIS.

To be funded by the 
Transformation Programme from 
2018.

9-12 months & 2 years Health Visitors Giving out dental pack and oral health prevention advice 
at 2 intervals in a child life. 

Dental pack fluoride toothpaste, 
brush and information leaflet

Children 0-2 years Primary Dental 
Care

Delivery of ‘Standards for Better Oral Health’

GDPs providing oral health prevention messages from 
birth to parents. 

Standards of better oral health 

P
age 22



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker

2019 / 2020
Updated May 2019

SCHEDULE OF PANEL DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic Responsible officer (s)

5 June 2019 Dental Health in Salford

Work Programme Development
3 July 2019

4 September 2019

2 October 2019

6 November 2019

4 December 2019

5 February 2020

4 March 2020

1 April 2020

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



Work stream Members Timescale
Dental Health in 
Salford

All Members - Health and Adults Scrutiny Panel Report in May 2019

Priority Areas for 2019 / 2020
Engagement of local people and measuring change
Primary Care Access
Poverty and its impact on Health

Abeyance List
The following issues have yet to be prioritised and TOR determined.

Adult Social Care performance framework and impact
Progress of the transformation plan and its impact
Reconfiguration of hospital services across GM – how services will change in practice
Care Home quality and domiciliary care support
Appointment of the Director of Social Care at the Integrated Care Organisation
All Age Mental Health Strategy
Supported Employment – adults with mental health and other vulnerable adults.

P
age 24



Portfolio of the Panel: Membership – 12 Members:

1. Health, Public Health and Social Care Integration and 
performance thereafter
2.  Commissioning Hub
3.  Major Health reconfiguration
4. Overview of Health and Wellbeing Board in promoting 
integration
5.  Supporting People
6. Services for independent living – care on call, sheltered 
housing, supported tenancies
7. Adult Safeguarding
8. Integrated Teams
9. Provider Services
10. Personalisation and care management
11. Asylum Seekers and Refugees
12. Welfare rights and debt advice
13. To review and scrutinise any matter relating to the planning 
provision and operation of the health service in the Salford area.
14. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area

Councillors

Saunders
1 Conservative Vacancy
Bellamy (VC)
Bentham 
Burch
Dawson
Hesling
King
Linden
Morris (C)
Sharpe
Warmisham

J Ahmed - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
David Backhouse - Co-opted Member (Healthwatch Salford)
Bruce Poole - Co-opted Member (Salford CVS)

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Engagement of local people and measuring change 

(Task and Finish Group)
Scoping Document

1. Name of review Engagement of local 
people and measuring 
change

2. Group members

3. Co-opted members

4. Key officers / service group/partner 
organisations

5. Relevant Lead Members

6. Timescales

7. Rationale for the review.
(Key issues and/or reason for doing the 
review)

8. Objectives of review 
(Specify exactly what the review should 
achieve/what are the potential outcomes of the 
review e.g. service improvements, policy change, 
etc?) 

9. Scope of the topic 
(What is specifically to be included/excluded)

10. Who will the group meet with?

Page 27



2 | P a g e

11. How will our partners be involved? 
(consultation with relevant stakeholders 

12. What site visits will be undertaken?

13. How will the public be involved? 

14. What evidence is needed for the review? 
(What information needs to be identified / is not 
already available?) 

15. Other information 

Page 28



1 | P a g e

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Poverty and its impact on Health 

(Task and Finish Group)
Scoping Document

1. Name of review Poverty and its impact on 
Health

2. Group members

3. Co-opted members

4. Key officers / service group/partner 
organisations

5. Relevant Lead Members

6. Timescales

7. Rationale for the review.
(Key issues and/or reason for doing the 
review)

8. Objectives of review 
(Specify exactly what the review should 
achieve/what are the potential outcomes of the 
review e.g. service improvements, policy change, 
etc?) 

9. Scope of the topic 
(What is specifically to be included/excluded)

10. Who will the group meet with?

Page 29



2 | P a g e

11. How will our partners be involved? 
(consultation with relevant stakeholders 

12. What site visits will be undertaken?

13. How will the public be involved? 

14. What evidence is needed for the review? 
(What information needs to be identified / is not 
already available?) 

15. Other information 

Page 30



1 | P a g e

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Primary Care Access 

(Task and Finish Group)
Scoping Document

1. Name of review Primary Care Access

2. Group members

3. Co-opted members

4. Key officers / service group/partner 
organisations

5. Relevant Lead Members

6. Timescales

7. Rationale for the review.
(Key issues and/or reason for doing the 
review)

8. Objectives of review 
(Specify exactly what the review should 
achieve/what are the potential outcomes of the 
review e.g. service improvements, policy change, 
etc?) 

9. Scope of the topic 
(What is specifically to be included/excluded)

10. Who will the group meet with?

Page 31



2 | P a g e

11. How will our partners be involved? 
(consultation with relevant stakeholders 

12. What site visits will be undertaken?

13. How will the public be involved? 

14. What evidence is needed for the review? 
(What information needs to be identified / is not 
already available?) 

15. Other information 

Page 32



Salford Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

Our work with Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust over 
the past 12 months has provided an ongoing demonstration by the Trust to 
provide outstanding services to the people of the city and Greater Manchester. 
The delivery of these standards shows the clear commitment of the Trust to its 
staff, patients and visitors.

The Panel note the organisational challenges which have been successfully 
met by the Trust.

The Panel would like to offer congratulations and thanks to all employees of 
the Trust, without whose endless dedication and professionalism, the 
achievements and improvements would not be possible.

We look forward to further progressing our partnership work with the Trust in 
2019 / 2020.

Councillor Margaret Morris, MBE
Chair of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Salford City Council

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel

Our work with Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust over the past 12 months 
has provided an ongoing demonstration by the Trust to provide outstanding 
services to the people of the city. The delivery of these standards shows the 
clear commitment of the Trust to its staff, patients and visitors.

The Panel notes the organisational changes to both the Northern Care Alliance 
and Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust. It wishes to place on record its 
thanks to Sir David Dalton and James Sumner for their leadership, dedication, 
service and passion during their time at the Trust. 

The Panel would like to offer congratulations and thanks to all employees of 
the Trust, without whose endless dedication and professionalism, the 
achievements and improvements of the organisation would not be possible.

We look forward to further progressing our partnership work with the Trust in 
2019 / 2020.

Councillor Margaret Morris, MBE
Chair of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Salford City Council

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2019.
	6 Report of the Dental Health in Salford Task and Finish Group
	7 Work Programme Development
	scoping_document_Engagement of local people and measuring change
	scoping_document_Poverty and its impact on Health
	scoping_document_Primary Care Access

	8 Quality Account Responses
	srft_quality_account_2019


